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Statement of the Case

This is a civil penalty proceeding initiated by the
petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 820(a),
seeking civil penalty assessnments for two alleged violations of
t he mandat ory noi se standards found at 30 CFR 55.50(b).
Respondent filed a tinmely answer and a hearing was convened in
Tanpa, Florida, on June 7, 1983. The posthearing argunments and
proposed findings and conclusions filed by the parties have been
considered by ne in the course of this decision.

| ssues

The principal issues presented in this proceeding are (1)
whet her respondent has violated the provisions of the Act and the
i npl enenting regulatory standard as alleged in the proposal for
assessnent of civil penalties, and, if so, (2) the appropriate
civil penalties to be assessed agai nst the respondent for the
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al l eged viol ati ons based upon the criteria set forth in section
110(i) of the Act. Additional issues concerning engineering or
adm nistrative feasibility for conpliance are identified and

di scussed herein.

In determ ning the amount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria: (1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2)
t he appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business
of the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violation

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, P.L.
95-164, effective March 9, 1978, 30 U. S.C. 801 et seq.

2. Mandatory standard 30 CFR 55.5-50, provides as foll ows:

55.5-50 Mandatory. (a) No enpl oyee shall be permtted
an exposure to noise in excess of that specified in the
tabl e bel ow. Noise |evel neasurenents shall be made
using a sound level neter neeting specifications for
type 2 meters contained in American National Standards
Institute (ANSI) Standard S1.4-1971. "Ceneral Purpose
Sound Level Meters," approved April 27, 1971, which is
hereby incorporated by reference and nmade a part

hereof, or by a dosineter with simlar accuracy. This
publication may be obtained fromthe American Nationa
Standards Institute, Inc., 1430 Broadway, New York, New
York 10018, or may be examined in any Metal and
Nonmetal M ne Health and Safety District or Subdistrict
Ofice of the Mne Safety and Health Admi nistration

PERM SSI BLE NO SE EXPOSURES

Dur ation per day, Sound | evel dBA,
hours of exposure sl ow response

B 90

B 92
A 95
S 97

2 100

N 102
L 105

1 2 110
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No exposure shall exceed 115 dBA. Inpact or inpulsive
noi ses shall not exceed 140 dB, peak sound pressure
| evel .

NOTE. When the daily exposure is conposed of two or
nore periods of noise exposure at different |evels,
their conbi ned effect shall be considered rather than
t he individual effect of each

If the sum
(C1/T1) + (C2/T2) +. . . (OCn/Tn)

exceeds unity, then the m xed exposure shall be considered

to exceed the permni ssible exposure Cn indicates the tota
time of exposure at a specified noise level, and Tn indicates
the total time of exposure pernmitted at that |evel. Interpo-

| ati on between tabul ated val ues may be deterni ned by the
foll ow ng forml a:

log T = 6.322 - 0.0602 SL

Were T is the tine in hours and SL is the sound | evel
in dBA.

(b) When enpl oyees' exposure exceeds that listed in the
above table, feasible admnistrative or engi neering
controls shall be utilized. [If such controls fail to
reduce exposure to within perm ssible |evels, persona
protection equi prent shall be provided and used to
reduce sound levels to within the |evels of the table.

Sti pul ations

The parties stipulated to the following (Tr. 7-9):

1

Respondent' s products affect conmerce and
respondent is subject to the Act.

Respondent' s gross busi ness revenues for the fisca
year 1982 were in excess of one billion dollars, and
the penalties proposed for the citations in question
will not affect the respondent's ability to remain in
busi ness.

Respondent's history of prior citations is that
stated in MSHA' s conputer print-out, exhibit P-1
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Di scussi on

Section 104(a) Citation No. 094927, Novenber 26, 1980, cites
an alleged violation of 30 CFR 55.5-50, and the condition or
practice described by MSHA | nspector Arthur MLaughlin states:

The car unl oader was exposed to 2.01 tinmes the
permssible limt for noise for a full shift. Hearing
protection was not being worn and all feasible

engi neering or adm nistrative controls were not being
utilized.

The inspector fixed the initial abatenent tinme as Decenber
1, 1980, and on Decenber 3, 1980, he extended the abatenent tine
to January 2, 1981, and noted as foll ows:

Ear protection was being worn. Citation No. 094927 is
nmodi fied from55.5-50 to 55.5-50(b), which requires the
devel opnent and installation of feasible engineering
controls. The citation term nation due date is also
extended to 1-2-81 to allowtine to inplenment control
nmeasures. Hearing protection shall be worn until the
noi se levels are reduced to pernmissible limts.

On January 13, 1981, the inspector extended the abatenent
further to February 13, 1981, and he noted as foll ows:

Various noi se control neasures have been tried, but
were not satisfactory. The problem had been referred
to the engineering dept. The extension is granted to
allow time for the engineering dept. to develop a
control measure.

On March 9, 1981, the inspector extended the abatenent tine
to May 15, 1981, and he noted the foll ow ng:

Citation 0094927 is extended to May 15, 1981 to all ow
MSHA' s Pittsburgh Technical Support Center anple tine
to evaluate the noi se problem and make a determ nation
as to whether or not feasible engineering controls are
avai |l abl e.

On May 27, 1981, the abatenment tine was further extended,
and I nspector Charles D. Cox noted the follow ng:

This citation is extended as additional time is needed
for feasible engineering studies by MSHA techni ca
support group.
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The abatenent tine was further extended by Inspector Cox on
July 7, 1981, to August 10, 1981, for the reasons stated i mediately
above. Thereafter, on Septenber 1, 1981 he term nated the
citation for the foll owi ng reasons:

This citation is term nated pendi ng devel opnent of
addi ti onal nmeans of noi se attenuation on this equipnent
which may be required at a later date. 1In the
meanti me, suitable protective hearing equi prent shal

be worn when persons are exposed to this noise source.

I nspect or McLaughlin issued a second section 104(a) G tation
No. 094928, on Novenber 26, 1980, citing a violation of 30 CFR
55.5-50, and the condition or practice is described as follows:

The car unl oader was exposed to 2.03 tinmes the
permssible limt for noise for a full shift. Hearing
protection was not being worn and all feasible

engi neering or adm nistrative controls were not being
utilized.

I nspect or McLaughlin nodified the citation to reflect a
citation to section 55.5-50(b), and both he and I nspector Cox
ext ended the abatement tines to and including August 1, 1981, and
the reasons for these actions are the sanme as those noted above
in connection with Citation No. 094927. On Septenber 1, 1981
I nspector Cox term nated Citation No. 094928, for the sanme
reasons that he termnated the previous citation

Petitioner's proposal for assessment of civil penalties in
this case was filed on Decenber 21, 1981, and it asserts that
respondent operates a mine at Hill sborough County, Florida,

"whi ch produces phosphate and its mners handl e or otherw se work
wi th and on goods, materials, supplies and equi pment produced at
or destined for points outside the State of Florida"

Respondent's answer was filed on January 18, 1982, and
respondent does not dispute MSHA's jurisdictional assertion. Wth
regard to the alleged violations, respondent's answer states the
fol |l owi ng def enses:

a) there are no feasible adm nistrative or engineering
controls to reduce the noise level in the area referred
toin the citations;

b) the conduct described in the Gtation is not in
violation of the cited standard in
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t hat Respondent has utilized several nethods to reduce
the noise level but they have all proved ineffective and,
in conpliance with the cited standard, Respondent provides
and requires mners to wear personal protective equi prment
when working in the area referred to in the Gtation

c) the conduct described in the Ctation was the
result of unpreventabl e enpl oyee m sconduct;

d) the condition described in the Gtation is not such
that it would significantly and substantially
contribute to the cause and effect of a mne safety and
heal t h hazar d;

e) the existence of the alleged condition was not the
result of an unwarranted failure to conmply with the
cited standard.

MSHA' s testinony and evi dence

MSHA | nspector Arthur MlLaughlin confirmed that he conducted
an inspection at the respondent’'s phosphate plant on Novenber 25,
1980, and he was acconpani ed by uni on and conpany
representatives. He also confirned that he issued two noise
citations after determ ning that the noi se exposure for two
enpl oyees working in the plant railroad dunping buil di ng exceeded
the required levels. He described the cited work | ocation as an
open-ended buil di ng about 100 feet long and 40 feet wide with a
railroad track down the mddle and an open grated fl oor bel ow for
t he dunping of the mned materials which are transported to the
buil ding by railroad cars and dunped bel ow and t hrough the grated
floor to a conveyor belt (Tr 12-17).

M. MlLaughlin stated that the two worknen stationed in the
wor k area use pneumatic wrenches to open the gates |located at the
bottomof the railroad cars, and that the nmen are on opposite
sides of the car during the dunping process. He observed that
the men were not wearing ear protection devices, and since the
wor k area was | oud, he concluded that the nen were probably
over -exposed to noise and he confirned this prelimnary "noise
screeni ng” by use of a sound mllinmeter. He returned to the
pl ant the next day, Novenber 26, 1980, to conduct a full noise
conpliance survey. He confirmed that he calibrated and checked
hi s noi se and sound | evel dosineters, which he described as a
Ceneral Radio Type 2, 1954, sound level neter, and installed the
dosineters on the two workmen. He sanpled themfor a little over
seven hours and found that they were both over-exposed, and both
were exposed to 95
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deci bles. H's sound | evel meter readings were 103 for one man and
102 for the other, and neither nan was wearing any ear protection
on Novenber 26. M. MlLaughlin believed that the primary noise
source was the pneumatic wench when it was engaged to the
railroad car door opening fitting (Tr. 17-23).

On cross-exam nation, M. MlLaughlin stated that he
performed no tests to differentiate the various noi se sources
present in the |oading area in question, and he confirned that he
could not have made such tests with the equi pnment he had on the
day of the inspection. He also confirned that when he conducted
the noise tests he did not have the two enpl oyees under
conti nuous observation and he could not state whether the
dosineters were tanpered with during the testing period (Tr.
23-26).

In response to bench questions, M. MLaughlin confirned
that had the cited workers worked only four hours they woul d have
been in conpliance, and he indicated that the dosinmeter only
regi sters noise levels in excess of 90 dBA's. He also confirnmed
that it was respondent's policy to make ear protection avail able
to enpl oyees, but he did not know whether the cited enpl oyees
were ever supplied with such ear protection, and he did not ask
them (Tr. 27-28).

M. MlLaughlin was of the viewthat in order to conply with
section 55.5-50, a m ne operator should conduct noi se surveys,
| ocate any problens, and then attenpt to solve them He believes
that a 90 dBA noise limt is workable, and that for every 3
deci bl es of noi se reduction, sound pressure di m ni shes by 50%
He confirnmed that he woul d have issued the citations even if the
two men had been wearing ear protection, and he woul d have cited
t he respondent for not using engineering controls to reduce the
noi se levels (Tr. 32).

M. MlLaughlin stated that he recommended to the respondent
that a barrier or acoustical wapping with sound absorption
materials be used to reduce the wench noise. H's reconmendation
t hat personal ear protection be supplied i mediately was foll owed
by the respondent (Tr. 33). He confirmed that the wench
operators work on both sides of the cars sinultaneously, that
they are exposed to the noise fromeach other's wench, and when
there is no unloading going on they would sinply sit in the car
unl oadi ng area (Tr. 34-35).

M. MlLaughlin indicated that while the car shaker is
anot her noi se source, it is operated froma control booth and is
i nsul ated from noi se | evel above 90 dBA's. He confirnmed that the
wor kers at the car unloading area worked eight hour shifts, three
shifts a day, seven days a week, and that two
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persons worked each shift. He did not sanple other car unl oader
wor kers, and indicated that nonconpliance on one shift would be

i nferred as nonconpliance on the other shifts (Tr. 36). He
estimated that 50 cars were unl oaded on any given day and he had
no reason to suspect that the pneumati c wenches were out of
conpliance prior to the day of his inspection. He confirmed that
the noise problens at the plant were isolated to the car

unl oadi ng area, and he believed that the fact that the respondent
installed insulation and a control booth to reduce the car shaker
noi se levels indicated that the respondent was aware of the fact
that a noise problemexisted (Tr. 38). M. MLaughlin indicated
that he did not return to the plant after the citations were

i ssued except for the purpose of extending the abatenent tines,
and he believed that the wenches in question were still being
used (Tr. 39).

In response to further questions, M. MlLaughlin stated that
he saw no noi se controls installed on the wenches during the
time he was at the plant and he did not observe the car shaker in
operation. He had no actual know edge of the nunber of daily car
trips to the plant, and believed that all of the cars were of
uni form size and construction. He was not aware of any
additional noise citations at the plant since 1980 (Tr. 40-41).

Jerry W Antel, Engineering Technician, MSHA s Physica
Agents Branch, testified as to his background and experience in
the field of noise and noi se surveys, and he indicated that the
pur poses of such surveys is to identify noise sources and to make
reconmendati ons for noise reductions. He confirnmed that he
visited the respondent's Port Sutton Plant in April 1981 and May
1982, and that he did so at the request of MSHA's | ocal field
office. He confirmed that he conducted his noise survey at the
metal building where the | oconptive cars enter on a rail line to
be unl oaded onto a belt system which conveys the mined materials
into the plant, and his mission was to investigate the cited
pneumati ¢ wrench noi se and to make recommendati ons for
i nprovenents. During his April visit he observed two workers in
t he unl oadi ng area, and the | oconotive operator was al so present
(Tr. 42-47).

M. Antel stated that during the April visit he observed
dust collectors on one side if the unloading building, and car
shakers nmounted on the other. After calibrating the dosineters,
he placed themon the two workers, and he expl ained the
procedures and the results of his survey (Tr. 47-51). He
confirmed that the primary noi se source was the pneumati c wench
whi ch was used during the | oadi ng and unl oadi ng of the railroad
cars (Tr. 51). He stated that the sound | evel neter readings
during the opening of the cars was in the range
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of 107 to 108 dBA, and 108 to 109 dBA during closing. The tape
recordi ngs revealed 104 to 105 dBA during opening, and 106 dBA in
closing. The recordings al so showed that when the wench was
runni ng di sengaged there were definite peaks in the

m d-frequency, speech range of 500 hertz, 1000 hertz, 200 hertz.
However, when the wench was engaged, other areas cane into play
which flattened off this spectrum There were no primary peaks.
He identified exhibit no. 6 as the report he prepared on the
first visit in April and he suggested an encl osure be constructed
around the body of the wench to nuffle both the exhaust noise
and the noise radiating fromthe wench body. He also
reconmended a flat box be fitted over the chuck to deflect noise
downward. In addition, he recommended three administrative
controls. One, that the nen should usually | eave the area when
cars cane through; two, that the tram whistle should not be bl own
unl ess necessary; and three, that the flagmen generally avoid
riding in the |loconotive cab (Tr. 52-55).

M. Antel identified exhibit P-7 as sonme instructions for
the construction of a waparound nmuffler for the reduction of
noi se on the wench in question, and he confirned that this was
part of his recomrendati ons for reducing the noise on the wench.
He al so indicated that the waparound device was comercially
avai l abl e fromthe EAR Corporation in Indianapolis, and he
believed that the use of this device would lead to a mnimum5 db
reduction in noise, and that the device would cost about $65 in
material and installation, and could be installed by one man in
one day (Tr. 57). He also was of the view that the installation
of this waparound device would not | ead to any nai ntenance or
utilization problens, and he stated that he had installed the
device on other pneumatic drills (Tr. 58-59).

Wth regard to his second visit in May 1982, M. Ante
confirned that he took note of the noise controls which the
respondent installed on the wenches in question. These included
nodi fications to the wenches by the installation of sheet stee
barrier lines with acoustical foamto shield the wench operators
fromthe noise and a hose nuffler attached at the exhaust end of
the wench to cut down the noise (Tr. 59-60). M. Ante
identified certain photographs which he took during both of his
visits, and they include the wench before and after the
acoustical treatment or inprovenments (exhibits P-5 and P-8).

M. Antel stated that the noise control inprovenents nmade by
t he respondent did not correspond to those which he had
recomended, and using the same sanpl e equi pnent he used during
his April 1981
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visit, he sanpled the worker using the treated wench and read an
exposure of 192% or 95 dBA over an eight hour sanpling cycle,
and an exposure of 453% or 101 dBA, fromthe worker using such a
wrench. The sound | evel neter indicated readings of 104, 106
dBA's for the untreated wench, and 102 and 104 dba's for the
treated wench (Tr. 65).

M. Antel stated that he observed the utilization of the
nodi fied wench for the entire shift on the second day of the
visit. He estimated the noise controls reduced exposure by 5
dB' s and noticed that the operator experienced mnor difficulties
i n engaggi ng the wench because of the flap. He neither noticed
nor was infornmed of any resulting maintenance problens. He
approxi mated the material cost of IMCs inprovenents at $95 to
$100, and the installation tine to be one day. He considered the
5 dB reduction significant because it could increase the
operation tine of the equipnment by two fold, and represented
nearly 75% of the sound tolerance. M. Antel also related that
MSHA' s offer that a wench be shiped to MSHA in Pittsburgh, to be
nodi fied and tested at MSHA's expense, with the respondent
responsi bl e for shipping, was rejected by the respondent (Tr.

66- 69) .

On cross exam nation, M. Antel conceded that sone
addi ti onal noi se generated fromthe chucks engaged in the car and
fromthe car itself, but that he did not "isolate or quantify”

t hese other noise sources. He also conceded that the railroad
cars were of varying sizes and construction, and he did not

beli eve he had tested the treated and untreated w enches on the
same car door. Thus, the testing would not reflect variations
bet ween t he wenches nor between different types of cars. O an
estimated 50 cars that were opened and cl osed, he took
nmeasurenents of ten to fifteen (Tr. 69-72).

M. Antel confirmed that the noise exposure indices for the
two untreated wenches for the full shift noted in the citations
were 201% and 203% and he noted that in his report of July 12,
1982 (exhibit P-9), he found under a sinilar situation that the
untreated wench generated noise at a | evel 453% of the
perm ssi bl e dosage. He expl ained the discrepancy in the test
results as follows (Tr. 73-74):

A. | believe that can be accounted for due to the
variables, not only in the types of cars, but also in
t he nunber of cars that, in which the wench is used.
If I could refer back to nmy first visit, we wtnessed
about fifty cars, fifty-two cars that were being

unl oaded that day, but only on about half of these the
wrench was used. And the other
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hal f, they were used, the bar was used to open it. So
certainly that would i nfluence the exposures, the nunber
of times the wench was used.

Q Then you are suggesting that to conpare those two
nunbers i s inproper?

A. | amsaying that one day night vary from anot her
day, dependi ng on the number of cars they are opening.

Q You are suggesting then that those figures are
i nval i d?

A. No, | amsaying that those figures were valid for
t hat day.

Q You only tested themone day? On the follow up
visit?

A. The followup visit we did one full shift, sir.

M. Antel did not know how many days per nonth cars were
normal Iy unl oaded, nor how many hours enpl oyees were exposed to
the wrench noi se, and therefore could not give a professiona
estimate as to the magnitude of potential harmto the enpl oyees.
He agreed that a hypothetical wench flap which obscured the
operator's view of the connection points, or which had to be
ki cked into position, or an exhaust nuffler which, because of
severe working conditions, led to the wench being repaired two
or three tines nore than usual, would not be a feasible device.
He al so said that it was possible for the treated wench to be
used in conpliance with the noi se standards dependi ng upon the
anount of exposure received over varying periods of time (Tr.
76-77).

In response to further questions, M. Antel explained that
because of the design of certain car doors, a bar was used to
manual |y open the doors, and that this procedure produced no
noi se problem He further stated that he did not know who owned
or controlled the cars. He understood that the respondent's
reluctance to ship a wench to MSHA stenmed fromthat fact that
there were normally three wenches operating and two in the shop
Al so, he had never heard of a device such as the wench being
used anywhere el se. He conceded that one could not guarantee
that once nodifications were nmade on the wench it would forever
remain in conpliance (Tr. 81-83).
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M. Antel was of the opinion that a new wench woul d cost
$4400 or $4500, and he estimated that wench nodifications either
t hrough MBHA' s reconmendati ons or through the respondent’'s own
techni ques, would result in a noise reduction of five dB's. He
confirmed that there was | ess noise during the opening of the
| oconotive car doors than there was during closing because the
materials in the car tended to danpen the noise. He conceded
that he did not know the | abor costs incurred in maintaining the
wrenches in their inproved form (Tr. 95). He al so explai ned that
the two to three day installation time referred to in the answers
to interrogatories included five or six hours of "curing tine"
needed for the nolten urethane material to dry (Tr. 98). He
confirned that no reconmendati ons have ever been nmade to do
anything with the | oconotive cars in terms of noise controls, and
he conceded that if part of the noise problens cane fromthe cars
sonmeone woul d need to address that problem but that the
respondent does not own the cars (Tr. 101-102). He conceded t hat
the noise fromthe cars doors was a contributing factor (Tr.
102).

Respondent' s testi nobny and evi dence

Donald R Erickson, plant maintenance supervisor, testified
that he has tested the wench in question and supervised the
installation of various noise suppression devices on the w ench.
These "treatnments" consisted of a steel plate which was added to
the frame of the machine extending to the toe plate, a box fitted
over the wench bit cover, and a hose nuffler adapted to the
exhaust port. Because of the differences between the w enches
used at the plant, any nodifications would have to be specially
fabricated to fit each individual machine. He confirned that the
respondent did not nodify all of the five wenches used at the
plant, and he estimated that it took 32 man hours to treat one
wench. He also estimated the cost of materials and | abor for
one wench to be approximately $750. He also stated that
i ncreased mai ntenance costs would result after each wench was
nodi fi ed because such nodifications would result in the wench
being required to be serviced two or three tinmes nore than nornal
because of the nodifications. Specifically, he cited the hose
adapter for the exhaust muffler on the nodified wench, and he
estimated that it would have to be replaced nine tines a year at
a cost of $50 for each replacenent installation. He also stated
that the rear housing on each of the wenches would have to be
replaced three tinmes a year at a cost of $650 each tine it was
repl aced on a single wench. He concluded that the total costs
in labor and materials for the five nodified wenches woul d
approxi mate $19,500 a year (Tr. 105-119).

On cross exam nation, M. Erickson confirnmed that only one
wrench had actually been nodi fied, and that he supervised
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the work, but did not know who had nade the actual nodification
design or recomendation (Tr. 120). He conceded that with the
exception of the wench nmuffler, the material used to nodify the
one wrench was available in the plant shop or was borrowed from
another job. He also confirnmed that routine maintenance work on
the wrenches was perfornmed by a contract nmaintenance vendor. He
al so confirned that the | abor and nai ntenance costs which he
testified to concerning the one wench which was nodi fi ed was
based on his experience with the wench which was nodified for
test purposes, but he could not state how long the testing period
lasted (Tr. 130).

In response to further questions, M. Erickson stated that
the nodified wench was tested on four different operationa
occasions, and that during these tests the wench operators
expressed a desire to have the bit cover shroud and the bottom
defl ector renoved fromthe wench because it got in their way
while they were operatint it. Conceding that he had no know edge
of the actual test results, he did confirmthat the enpl oyees who
operated the wench expressed a preference to use the wench in
its original untreated form (Tr. 135-138).

M. Erickson stated that the wench supplier was asked to
i nquire of the manufacturer as to whether or not nuffler or other
noi se controls could be installed on the machine, but that the
response was negative (Tr. 142). He speculated that if one
wrench were shipped to MSHA for prol onged testing, this would
af fect producti on because the initial dunping process by use of
the wenches was a critical part of the plant's production
process. This was particularly true when one or nore of the
wr enches are down for maintenance (Tr. 152). He confirned that
the wenches were sent to the maintenance vendor at |east once a
nonth for routine maintenance and woul d rermain there for a week
to a nonth. Al of the wenches in use at the plant are
approximately two to four years old. A though M. Erickson could
not state a routine maintenance estimate for an untreated wench,
he did indicate that the vendor's bills rarely were for |less than
$175 to $200 for each trip to the shop (Tr. 154). He agreed that
each new wench probably cost in the area of $4500 each (Tr.
156). He confirmed that he was not present when the treated
wrench was tested at the work site, and had no know edge of any
of the test procedures (Tr. 157).

Eugene I. Rowel |, respondent's safety supervisor, testified
as to his background and eight to nine years' experience in
i ndustrial safety and hygi ene, including conducting noi se surveys
and using sound level neters and dosinmeters (Tr. 159-161). He
stated that shipnents of rock to Port Sutton came in so
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erratically that he was unable to guess at how many days per
nmont h unl oadi ng t ook place. However, he did estinmate that an
average of 18 to 20 cars per day were unl oaded during the first
shifts, and the cars were of varying size and design. Sone could
only be opened manually with a bar, and others had | ower hoppers.
In a full day, the workers mght spend four to six hours
unloading fifty to sixty cars. Only when the cars doors were
bei ng opened were the pneumatic wenches utilized (TR 164).

M. Rowell stated that the lead flagman had radi o cont act
with the train engineer and was responsible for the recovery of
cars which needed to be dunped, storing them after unloading, and
opening the car doors on his side of the track. If tine allowed,
crew nmenbers were often assigned to other duties until a new
shi pment arrived. At tines, three days passed wi thout a single
car being unl oaded, and he added that he had never seen the
shaker used in the rock unloading during his three years at the
plant (Tr. 166).

M. Rowel| described the enpl oyees' hearing conservation
programat the Port Sutton facility. Al workers involved in the
unl oadi ng process were required to wear hearing protection, and
they received sone training in noise hazards as part of a
mandat ory MSHA course. M. Rowel | approxi mated the wei ght of one
pneumati ¢ wench to be 130 pounds. However, any sound treatnent
equi prent woul d add 20 to 30 pounds extra weight to each wench
(Tr. 169). He further indicated that this additional weight
woul d enhance the |ikelihood of back injury anmong the operators,
and that the nodifications would al so obscure a worker's view of
the wench bit when he tried to insert it into the car door. An
enpl oyee's attenpt to operate the wench w thout a secure
connection could lead to the bit flying off and injuring soneone
(Tr. 170).

M. Rowell recalled that, in response to the MSHA citations,
pl ant managenment conducted noi se tests on four or five occasions,
and he briefly described sone of the testing. He reiterated the
potential hazards which would result from decreased visibility on
a treated wench due to the flap covering the coupling. Wth
regard to adm nistrative controls for noise reduction, he stated
that the existing union contract would frustrate any plan for
personnel rotation, and that it would cost nore noney to add a
part-tine crew. The conpany does not own the railroad cars, and
therefore it lacked the ability to nodify their design. M.
Rowel I al so di scussed the dangers of using the car bar as an
alternative to the pneumati c wench, and indicated that one
reason for the adoption of the wench was to avoid the frequency
of bar related accidents (Tr. 182-187).

M. Rowell estimated that the ear plugs supplied to the
enpl oyees reduced the sound | evel 188 by 15 or 20 dBA. The
annual cost for plugs woul d be about $20 or $30, while ear nmuffs
sold for fourteen or fifteen dollars a pair. Wen asked if the
conpany had consulted the manufacturers on the
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subj ect of noise control, he replied that the manufacturer had
actual ly requested the conpany to pass along its findings as they
did not have any answers. M. Rowell also confirmed that he was
unawar e of any feasible engineering or adm nistrative sol utions
for aneliorating the noise problem (Tr. 188).

On cross exam nation, M. Rowell denied that either he or
hi s supervi sor had been aware of the noise problemin the
unl oadi ng area, and he could recall no noi se surveys being
conducted prior to the MSHA inspection. The enpl oyees were
instructed in their training classes that whenever they felt a
need for hearing protection or sound tests in their work area,
they were to notify their supervisor or the safety departnent,
who woul d then supply the protection and conduct the tests.
Al t hough he did not know of any other sections with noise
probl ens, he stated that there were sone workers who did choose
to wear hearing protection (Tr. 189-190).

Wth regard to the conpany noi se surveys, (exhibits R-8 and
R-9), M. Rowell confirned that he used a Quest Type 2 sound
level neter, but that no dosineters were used. He confirnmed that
he was not famliar with the error factor on the particul ar sound
| evel nmeter used. He also confirned that he acconpanied M.

Antel on both surveys, and in the 1982 testing took sanples at
the sane tine as the MSHA personnel. He agreed that there was
about a five dBA reduction on the treated wench, but was not
sure if that was reflected in the conpany survey report, exhibit
R-8. Nor was he sure how that figure was arrived at, and he
admtted not know ng exactly how nmuch wei ght woul d be added to
the wench because of the noise controls. He conceded that not
all of the controls installed on the wench corresponded to those
suggested by MSHA. M. Rowell confirned that he took the

readi ngs for the May 26, 1982, survey which was incorporated as
respondent's exhibit no. 9, but he was unable to explain why Car
No. 5 enmitted | ess noise with an untreated wench then with a
treated one (Tr. 193-203).

In response to further questions, M. Rowell stated that the
conpany had at one tinme considered purchasing a hydraulic torque
wrench to keep the work environnent quieter, but did not do so
because of certain safety factors. He agreed that the clainmed 20
dBA noi se reduction through the use of ear plugs was sinply the
manufacturer's claim and that this reduction may not be accurate
at the actual work locations (Tr. 212-217).

Ri chard @ullickson, Industrial Hygienist, testified that he
has been in the respondent's enploy for al nost 15 years, 12 of
whi ch were as a professionally certified industrial hygienist.
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He testified as to his professional background, and confirmed
that he held a college B.S. Degree in chem stry and that he had
participated in noise surveys and testing (Tr. 235-240). He was
aware of the events surrounding the issuance of the citations in
guestion and confirmed that he was famliar with the design
operation, and uses nmade of the cited pneumati c w enches,

i ncluding the nodifications which were nmade during the past two
years. Although he personally did not test the treated and
untreated wenches, he was famliar with the tests and the
results, and in nost cases the testing was done under his
direction (Tr. 240).

M. @llickson disagreed with MSHA | nspector MLaughlin's
position that the pneumatic wench was the prinmary noi se source
in the unloading facility. He did not believe that his
nmeasurenents reveal ed the degree of noise reduction on the
treated wench as indicated by the MSHA inspector. Al though he
| acked supportive data, he advanced the notion that the |onger a
wrench was used, the quieter it becanme due to wear and
refurbi shing and he believed that this was why the wenches
seened quieter after they were treated. Also, he clained that
MSHA tested different wenches w thout determ ning what their
i ndi vi dual noise levels were with the sane treatnent. Because of
a possible ten decibel, or ten-fold, difference between various
cars, he focused his experinents on only two cars. |In some cases
the treated wench was higher in noise intensity than the
untreated wench, but he did not regard it as noisier, and
t hought that the contrast reflected two different wenches wth
different intensities (Tr. 242-245).

Wth regard to MBHA's testing in May 1982, M. Qullickson
expressed no quarrel with the scientific validity of MSHA' s
testing nmethods. However, he did express concern over the fact
that the noise | evel neasurenments were made on two di fferent
untreated wenches which were not of the same noise levels. As
an exanple, he cited the April 1981, test results where the |ead
fl agman averaged 90. 2 decibles and the flagnman averaged 95. 4,
both fromuntreated wenches. He believed that it was critica
to test the sane wench on the same car because the cars had up
to ten decibel differences in their noise, which translated to a
ten-fold difference in noise energy (Tr. 249).

M. Qllickson rejected MSHA' s contention that
scientifically valid conclusions could be drawn from an
experiment in which a nunmber of wenches were tested with a
certain nunber of cars and then sinply averaged out. He also
doubted the validity of MSHA's readi ng of 453% w th the noise
dosineter in May 1982, because neasurenents taken on ot her
occasions indicated that the noi se exposure index of the
untreated w enches shoul d be higher than 200% (Tr. 251-252).
Wth regard to the four decibel variation detected between the
treated versus the untreated w ench,
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M. Qllickson pointed out differences in noise intensity rangi ng
as high as ten-fold, which he attributed to disparate car

designs. He believed that, with a small enough sanple, it was
concei vabl e that differences between rail cars would override the
four dBA disparity. He regarded the vibration of the rail cars
as the only significant source of noise, and therefore, wench
nodi ficati on woul d be ineffective to reduce noise. In his
opi ni on, noi se reduction down to the 90 dBA tine-wei ghted average
was not feasible using MBHA's reconmendations or through any

ot her engi neering innovation. Even if all the wenches were
treated, he believed that enployees would still need to wear
hearing protection (Tr. 260-261).

On cross exam nation, M. CQullickson reiterated that if
properly fitted and worn, personal ear protection would reduce
excessi ve noi se exposure (Tr. 265). He confirnmed that ear plugs
and nuffs are avail able at the plant, and he generally di scussed
t he noi se survey studi es conducted at the plant, the results of
which are recorded in the reports, exhibits R8 and R 9 (Tr.
269). In response to a hypothetical, he stated that if there
were two equival ent noi se sources and one was reduced by 12 dBA,
the overall noise exposure would be dimnished by 3 decibels, or
fifty percent (Tr. 272). Even if a totally silent wench could
theoretically be designed, he believed the noise problemwould
not be significantly affected due to the fact that the car doors
were the major source of noise (Tr. 273). He also stated that
t he noi se exposure would be less if a car bar was used because
its inpact would be |less than that of a wench, but he conceded
that the pneumatic wenches did contribute to the noise |evel.
He further testified that the 114 deci bel |oconotive whistle
woul d have to sound for 15 minutes a day to be out of conpliance,
as opposed to an isolated ten second blast (Tr. 274-277).

Procedural ruling

As part of his post-hearing brief, petitioner's counse
i ncluded as an "Exhibit A" certain tabular conpilations
purportedly reporting the results of certain noise test data not
previously made a part of the evidentiary hearing record. By
letter filed Septenber 9, 1983, respondent’'s counsel objected to
t he docunent and noved that it not be considered by nme as part of
nmy decision in this case. Subsequently, by letter filed
Septenmber 23, 1983, in response to the respondent’'s objections,
petitioner's counsel w thdrew the exhibit and requested that it
not be considered in nmy decision in this case. Under the
ci rcunst ances, petitioner's request to withdraw the docunent IS
GRANTED, and | have not considered it in the course of this
deci si on.
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

Respondent's Port Sutton facility unl oads phosphate rock
fromits various nmne sites for processing, storage, or shipnent
to custonmers, and the facility enpl oys approxi mately 83
enpl oyees. The phosphate rock is unl oaded fromrailroad hopper
cars at the "dunping shed", an open-ended netal fabricated
bui | di ng approximately 100 feet long by 40 feet wide with a
railroad track running through the center. The railroad cars are
pul I ed through the building by a | oconotive. After each car is
pl aced at the unl oading point, the material is unloaded fromthe
bottom of the car and it drops through a grate in the floor under
the cars to a belt conveyor system underneath the grate for
transportation to the main plant for drying and storage.

The crew invol ved in the dunping or unl oadi ng process
consi sts of three enployees. The |oconotive engineer is
responsi ble for operating the loconotive to pull the railroad
hopper cars into position over the dunping grates. The |ead
flagman assists in positioning the railroad cars over the grates,
t hrough radi o comuni cations with the engi neer, and opens the
hopper car doors on one side of the dunping shed. The flagman
opens the railroad hopper car doors on the opposite side of the
dunpi ng shed. The flagman opens the railroad hopper car doors on
t he opposite side of the dunping shed opposite fromthe | ead
flagman. There are three crews available for working three
shifts, seven days a week. The nunmber of cars dunped on any
given shift vary. On the day of the inspection, the inspector
stated approxi mately 50 cars were dunped on one shift, and
respondent's wi tnesses estimated that on a yearly average
approximately 18 to 20 cars per shift are dunped

The | ead flagman and fl agman use pneumatic i nmpact w enches
to open and cl ose the hopper car doors havi ng rack-and- pini on
mechani sms. A square "bit" on the end of a pneumatic wench is
engaged with the socket on the hopper car door pinion and the
i npact wench is activated, causing the bit and pinion assenbly
to rotate and nove the hopper car door which is attached to the
rack. The doors can be opened or closed by adjusting the
pneumati c wench to rotate the bit and pinion assenbly either
cl ockwi se or counter-clockwi se. On sone cars, a bar has to be
used because the doors are not adapted for the pneumatic w ench.

The dunpi ng shed nmust normally have three pneumati c w enches
in operating condition at all times. One wench is |ocated at
the lead flagman's work station on one side of the shed and
tracks; that wench can be noved al ong the
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railroad tracks the entire length of the dunping shed. Two
wrenches are necessary on the opposite flagman's side of the
shed, because a concrete partition perpendicular to the railroad
track prohibits novenment of a single wench along the entire

| ength of the dumping shed. Any of the wenches can open any
railroad car's rack-and-pi ni on nechani sns.

Each of the pneumatic wenches is approximately four feet
high, two feet wide, and four feet long (including the bit). The
pneumati c i nmpact nmotor, contained in a cylindrical housing
approximately two feet in length, is nmounted between two
rubber-tired wheels that give the wenches their nobility. A
bit-directional control rod (allow ng the operator to sel ect
cl ockwi se or counter-clockw se rotation of the bit) extends
directly upward fromthe top of the pneumatic notor housing. The
power control for the pneumatic wench is | ocated on the right
handl ebar assenbly. The w enches have approxi mately four inches
ground cl earance. Each wench wei ghs approxi mately 130 pounds
and is connected by a |l ong hose to an air conpressor which is
| ocat ed outside the dunping shed. The bit of the pneumatic
wrench rotates at approximately 1500 r pm when unconnected to a
railroad car; under "load" conditions, that is, when connected to
a railroad car door pinion socket, the wench bit rotates at
approxi mately 10 rpm The wenches do not have noi se-suppression
devi ces supplied by the manufacturer. (Photographs of the wench
are included as part of the record).

I nspect or McLaughlin visited the Port Sutton facility on
November 25 and 26, 1980. The first day was devoted to a genera
schedul ed i nspection, and after determ ning that the unl oadi ng
area may have a noise problem M. MLaughlin returned to the
facility the next day and conducted a conpl ete noi se survey using
dosineters and a sound | evel neter. (A dosineter measures
accunul at ed exposure to noi se over a nmeasured period of tine,
while a sound | evel nmeter neasures noise at any instant in tine).
M. MlLaughlin calibrated the dosineters, and properly placed
themon the | ead flagman and fl agman who were working in the
unl oadi ng shed area. The dosineters were used to nmeasure the
noi se exposure of the two enployees for a full working shift, and
during the course of the shift M. MLaughlin returned to the
shed area four tinmes to take noise |l evel readings with the sound
| evel meter during the opening and closing of the car doors.

The two enpl oyees sanpl ed by dosinmeter by M. MlLaughlin on
Novenmber 26, were found to be exposed to 95 dBA, which is
equi val ent to 201% and 203% of the allowabl e regul atory maxi mum
noi se exposure, or 2.01 and 2.03 tinmes the all owabl e noise
exposure. Mandatory standard section 55.5-50 |imts enpl oyee
exposure to |l ess than 90 dBA for an ei ght hour duration, and
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for enpl oyees exposed to 95 dBA, the standard linmts the duration
of exposure to four hours. At the time of the inspection, the
enpl oyees were not wearing any hearing protection and M.
McLaughl i n observed no noi se controls on the pneumati c w enches
operated by the sanpled enpl oyees.

As a result of the Novenber 26, noise sanpling at the
unl oadi ng area, M. MLaughlin issued two section 104(a)
citations citing the respondent with viol ations of section
55.5-50(b), and as noted earlier in this decision the abatenent
times were extended several tinmes and the citations finally
term nated on Septenber 1, 1981.

The respondent concedes that the two cited enpl oyees were
not wearing personal hearing protection when the citations were
i ssued, and that on that particular day, the cited enpl oyees
wor ki ng at the dunpi ng operation were exposed to noi se in excess
of the regulatory maxi num Respondent also adnmits that it is
appropriate for me to find it liable for civil penalties for the
two violations, and that it cannot contest the citations nor a
proposed penalty assessnent insofar as petitioner seeks sanctions
only for failure to wear personal hearing protection on Novemnber
26, 1980

On the question of whether feasible engineering or
adm nistrative controls exist for the abatenent of the noise
| evel s described in the citations, respondent takes the position
that neither the noise controls that it has inplenmented or those
recommended by the petitioner are "feasible" as that term has
been statutorily and judicially defined. Respondent maintains
that none of the controls (whether inplenented or nerely
recommended) have been proved effective in reducing the tota
noi se of the unl oadi ng operation, have been shown to be
econom cal ly feasible, or have survived a cost-benefit analysis.

The dispute in this case arises on the question as to
whet her the petitioner has established that feasible engineering
controls are available to bring the respondent w thin conpliance,
and whet her or not the respondent has inplenented these controls
in good faith so as to come within the requirenents of the
standard. Respondent takes the position that it has acted in good
faith, and that it has nmade an attenpt to inplenment MSHA s
recomendations, as well as its own, but that they are not
feasible to achi eve conpliance. On the other hand, petitioner
takes the position that even though its recommendati ons, as well
as the actions taken by the respondent acting on its own
initiative, do not achieve total conpliance with the standard,
respondent is nonethel ess obligated to inplenent them



~1706

Citing Judge Morris' decision in MSHA v. N A Degerstrom 5
FMSHRC 637, April 5, 1983, petitioner submts that in order to
establish a violation of section 55.5-50, it nmust show that (1)
t he respondent's enpl oyees are exposed to noise levels in excess
of those permitted by the standard; (2) there are, in general
technol ogi cally feasible engineering or adm nistrative controls
avai | abl e which will reduce the noise; and (3) provide a rough
estimate as to the cost of inplenmenting the controls. Petitioner
submits that it has made out a prima facie case

Assuming that it can establish that the noise exposure
nmeasured by the inspector exceeded the allowable limts,
petitioner asserts that the gravanmen of the violations was that
the respondent failed to institute or to attenpt to institute any
"feasi ble adm nistrative or engineering controls to reduce noi se
exposure in the unloading area”. Qher than requiring enpl oyees
to wear hearing protection, which was not done at the tinme of the
citations, petitioner asserts that the respondent has still not
instituted any controls to reduce the noi se exposure. Although
concedi ng that the respondent had nodified one of its wenches
and conducted sone tests, petitioner maintains that the
nodi fications were not adopted. Petitioner advances the notion
that since its studies have shown that sone noise reduction has
been achi eved, respondent is obligated to inplenent them even
t hough they may not result in enough noi se abatenent to bring the
respondent within the requirements of the cited standard.

At page 17 of its post-hearing brief, petitioner cites Judge
Morris' decision in MBHA v. N A Degerstrom 5 FMSHRC 637, Apri
5, 1983, in support of its argument that any feasibility
consi derati on of noise controls to reduce enpl oyee exposure to
excessi ve noi se precludes the weighing of costs and benefits, and
that the phrase "feasible" should be construed to nmean "capabl e
of being done" or "achi evable" w thout regard to whether or not
any recommended controls will reduce the noise to within the
permssible limts. Al that is required, suggests petitioner
is that sone significant reduction is achi eved, regardl ess of
whet her such reduction results in total and full conpliance wth
the requirenents of section 55.5-50. 1In support of its argunent,
petitioner states that the consideration of whether the cost of a
control is wholly disproportionate to the benefits does not
i nvol ve a cost-benefit analysis or the kind of weighing of costs
and benefits involved in such an analysis. Petitioner suggests
there is no need to calculate and quantify all the conveivable
costs and benefits to determ ne where the bal ance lies. |nstead,
it is only
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necessary to arrive at a general estimate of the cost and to
ascertain that sone neasurable benefits can be expected to
result. In considering the benefits, it is not necessary to
prove that the results to be achieved by the control will, in
fact, pronote the purposes of the regulation or statute; the
regul ation or statute itself enbodies that determ nation
Petitioner asserts that the question is whether the control can
be expected to achieve any significant results and whether the
costs are so great that it would be irrational to require the use
of the control to achieve those results.

Aside fromthe fact that Judge Morris' decision in N A
Degerstromis not binding on me, | take note of the fact that he
relied on several cases deci ded under the Cccupational Safety and
Health Act, as well as the legislative history of that statute in
determ ni ng the nmeaning and application of the phrase "feasible".
He al so noted that "the law on this point continues in a state of
flux". In short, he relies on an interpretation by OSHRC, as
further refined by the Courts, to support his findings and
conclusions in N.A Degerstrom This | decline to do.

Petitioner also relies on Judge Mrris' decision in Jet
Asphalt and Rock Co., 3 FMSHRC 940, April 14, 1981, where he
construed section 55.5-50 as requiring the inplenentation of
feasible controls in the event of excessive exposure regardl ess
of whet her such inplenentati on woul d guarantee reducti on of the
noise to within the permssible levels. After review of Judge
Morris' decision, ny conclusion is that he sinply held that a
conpani on mandat ory standard (56.5-50) requires an operator to
explore the feasibility of adm nistrative or engineering noise
controls before relying on personal protective equi prent, and
that the nere use of ear plugs is not an absol ute defense.
agree with Judge Mrris' conclusion that "what |'mtrying to say
is that the first thing to be considered is adm nistrative or
engi neering controls", 4 FMSHRC 945. However, | reject
petitioner's attenpts to read anything else into his decision
and | reject any notion that section 56.5-50 permts anything
less than full conpliance with the clear |anguage of the
standard. The second sentence of section 56.5-50, clearly
permts the use of personal protection equipnent in the event
feasi bl e adm nistrative or engineering controls fail to reduce
any noi se exposure to within permssible levels. The perm ssible
| evel s are those stated in the standard, and the standard nakes
no al |l owances or provisions for so-called "inprovenents" or
"near" or "close to" conpliance with the required noise | evels.
If the Secretary wi shes to change or alter the standard he is
free to do so through proper rule making, but | reject his
attenpts to do so in this proceeding.
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Wth regard to any adverse econonic inpact on the respondent,
I cannot conclude that the cost factors discussed on the record in
this case woul d have any adverse inpact on the respondent.
Assum ng that the engineering noi se suppression nmethods advanced
by both the respondent and MSHA are proved workable, | seriously
doubt that the respondent would suffer economcally. As a matter
of fact, at page five of its posthearing argunments, respondent
states that "Although MSHA' s recommended noi se controls are
neither harnful nor costly, neither are they especially
effective". Thus, the question presented is whether the
engi neeri ng recommendati ons are cost effective. |In other words,
if it cannot be established through credible evidence that the
i npl enent ati on of the engi neering nmethods explored in this case
are feasible and realistically achievable, then respondent need
not go through needl ess expenditures to inplement them On the
facts of this case, | believe the critical question presented is
whet her respondent has explored all avail able feasible
engi neering and adm ni strative noise controls to bring it into
conpliance with the requirenments of the cited standard. As part

of that determination, | cannot conclude that the estinated costs
of "treating" each of the five wenches which respondent has
avail able at any given tine is all that critical. What is

critical is whether the "treated" wench will do the job.
Petitioner suggests that it has established that the results of
the "treated" wench tests clearly establish a reduction in noise
exposure and that respondent should not be allowed to abandon
this partial solution to the problemsinply because it does not
believe that total abatenent can be achieved.

The thrust of the petitioner's case is the assertion that
the May 1982, tests conducted by M. Antel (exhibit P-9),
concl usi vel y denonstrates an average noi se reduction with the
treated wench of 4.5 dBA in closing and 5.1 dBA in opening the
railroad car doors. Petitioner relies on M. Antel's testinony
that this average reduction in the noise |level was shown from
tests on 10 to 15 railroad cars (Tr. 72), and that dosineter
readi ngs he took for the enployee's full shift showed a reduction
of 6 dBA when using the treated wench (Tr. 64). However, a
cl oser exam nation of M. Antel's testinony reflects that some 50
cars passed through the unloading area at the tine of the
testing, that they varied in size and construction, that the
treated and untreated wenches were never tested on the sane car
doors, that neasurenments were only taken from 10 to 15 cars, and
that the wrenches were not conpared, one to the other on the sane
railroad car. In short, M. Antel conceded that his testing
procedures woul d not attract any individual variations between
the wenches (Tr. 71-72). Further, when asked to explain and
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reconcile M. MLaughlin's full shift test results show ng noise
exposure of 201% and 203% above the permitted limts for the
untreated wench, and his test results of 453% above the
permtted limts for an untreated wench, M. Antel replied as
follows (Tr. 73-74):

Q In your July 12, 1982 report, Petitioner's Exhibit
9, you found under simlar situation that the untreated
wrench generated noi se 453% of the perm ssible dosage;
is that not correct?

A Yes.

Q Under simlar circunstances, MSHA enpl oyees
obt ai ned readi ngs of 201, 203 and 453% That appears
to be a rather |arge discrepancy. Can you account for
t hat ?

A. | believe that can be accounted for due to the
variables, not only in the types of cars, but also in
t he nunber of cars that, in which the wench is used.

If I could refer back to nmy first visit, we wtnessed
about fifty cars, fifty-two cars that were bei ng unl oaded
that day, but only on about half of these the wench was
used. And the other half, they were used, the bar was used
to open it. So certainly that would influence the exposures,
the nunber of times the wench was used.

Q Then you are suggesting that to conpare those two
nunbers i s inproper?

A. | amsaying that one day night vary from anot her
day, dependi ng on the number of cars they are opening.

Q You are suggesting then that those figures are
i nval i d?

A. No, | amsaying that those figures were valid for
t hat day.

Q You only tested themone day? On the foll ow up
visit?

A. The followup visit we did one full shift, sir.
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Q Could you tell nme the, the activities of the enployees
working in the dry rock unloading area in the shed that we
have been di scussi ng?

A. My observation, | noticed the operators, besides
unl oading the cars with the pneumati c w enches, between
strings of cars they would go down into the rail yard
-- and I amnot sure what they were doing there -- but
they would conme up with another string of cars.

Q Do you know how many days per nonth railroad cars
are normal ly unl oaded there at Port Sutton in the shed?

A.  How nmany days per nonth?
Q Yes.
A No, | don't.

Q Do you know how many hours per nonth the enpl oyees
in the dry rock unloading area are exposed to that
wrench noi se?

A. No.

Q Doesn't the potential harmfrom any | oud noise
source depend on the duration of enployee exposure to
t hat noi se source?

A.  Yeah, | guess that would be true.

Q Since you don't know the activities of the

enpl oyees in that area, either on a daily or a nonthly
basi s, you cannot accurately testify as to any
potential harmthey may suffer as a result of their
exposure to the wench noise, can you?

A. | can only testify to the findings that | observed
t hat day.

Q But you can't give any professional estimate as to
t he magni tude of potential harmto the enpl oyees, can
you?

A No, | can't.
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One major flawin the petitioner's case is that its enforcenent
efforts are concentrated on the pneumati c wench used to open and
close the | oconotive cars. 1In its post-hearing brief, petitioner
mai ntai ns that both Inspector MlLaughlin and M. Antel were of
the opinion that the wench was the primary source of the noise.
However, as correctly pointed out by the respondent in its
post - heari ng argunments, the excessive noise | evels which pronpted
the i ssuance of the citations emanate fromthe total dunping
operation at the shed, and unless this total environment is
consi dered, concentrating on one particul ar piece of equipnent,
whi ch may or may not be significant, would be fruitless.

VWiile it is true that Inspector MlLaughlin testified that he
consi dered the primary source of noi se exposure as "the noise
bei ng generated by the pneumatic wench while it was engaged with
the car fitting" (Tr. 22), he conceded that he perforned no noise
nmeasurenents to differentiate and quantify the noi se produced by
the wrench from noi ses produced by the railroad car, and he
expl ained as follows (Tr. 23-24):

Q M. MlLaughlin, you just testified that the primary
noi se source during the unloadi ng operati on was the
pneumati c wench. But isn't it true that you never
performed tests to quantify the various noi se sources?

A. Explain that. Wat do you nean quantify?

Q You never perforned any tests when you were there
on that day to differentiate various noi se sources in
the dry rock and | oadi ng area, did you?

A Well, | did use a sound |evel neter while the
equi prent was operating, and | guess that would be a
quantified measurenment, would it not?

Q But you never performed a test to distinguish the
noi se generated by the wench fromthe noi se generated
by the railroad car or by the fans or enpl oyees
droppi ng | unchboxes in the shed itself, did you?

A Well, | wouldn't be interested in that.

Q Isn't it true that you cannot performsuch a test
usi ng the equi pnent that you had there on that day?

A Yes.
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And, at Tr. 28-29:

Q Now, M. deMeza asked you a question about whether
or not you actually tested all of the avail able noise
sources there. Do | take it that the noise |evels that
you found to be out of conpliance would be what? A
conposite or a totality of all the noise that these two
fell ows were engaged -- were exposed to during the
course of a given shift?

A.  Yeah, as a, as the inspector -- | amnot really
concerned that much which piece of equipnent is naking
t he noi se, because you, in this particular case, you
have got a wench nmaki ng noi se, you have got stee
rattling on the cars, you have got all kinds of noise.
VWhat | aminterested in is what the man is being
exposed to. And so it is, it is the total noise in the
ar ea.

Q So |l take it if you tested all of the available

noi se sources and you found that one in particul ar was
the culprit, if I can use that word, in other words, if
you were to take that particul ar piece of equi pnent out
of the workers' environment and theoretically if that
woul d bring theminto conpliance, that they would know
what the particul ar noi se source would be, wouldn't

t hey?

A. Yes. If they were not using a pneumatic w ench
there woul dn't be, you know, hardly any noi se.

Q Do you feel that that was the principle noise
source there that was causing the probl en?

A.  Unh-huh
Q That was causing the problenf

A. It was the pneumati c wench opening the car doors.
You see, it is a conbination. You have two things.
You have noi se fromthe wench and you al so have noi se
when it is engaged.

VWhile it is true that M. Antel testified that based on his
April 1981, noise survey, it was his opinion that the primry
noi se source "was the wench and operating during | oading and
unl oadi ng of the cars"™ (Tr. 51). He qualified his statenent by
readi | y concedi ng the existence of dunping operation noise
sources other than the pneumati c wenches, and his testinony in
this regard is as follows:
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Q (M. deMeza) Wiy does the noise |level increase when
doors are being closed? The rail car doors?

A. Because the cars are being enptied at that tinme and
the reverberation condition

Q Reverberation condition?

A. Fromthe cars theneslves.

So, in closing &the hopper doorsg, that danping of the
rock is, is absent, but the walls are pretty GsicE

vi brating and shake in synpathy, | suppose, to the
wrench?

A Yes. (Tr. 94-95).

* * * *

Q (The Court) GCkay, now, with that flap device over
t here what, what kind of noise would cone fromthat
coupli ng and uncoupl i ng?

A It was a very loose fitting on sone of these cars
from | suppose, continual opening and cl osing, where
the bit or this part of the wench woul d engage and
sonmetines it tended to rattle and junp around (Tr. 99).

* * * *

Q (M. DeMeza) Did you attenpt to identify and
regul ate those ot her noise sources?

A. There was no way that, that | was able to do that,
since the wench was not operating, certainly would not
excite the car and there was no other neans of
generating the noise fromthe car, other than the
wrench. (Tr. 69).

Q And when he is opening the doors, that particular
wrench generates noi ses?

A Yes, sir.
Q At that point and at what other point?

A. dosing. Opening and cl osing.
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Q So, if, if part of the noise problemis the, the
doors clanging and that, |I would think that sonebody
woul d want to address that, too, That would be a
contributing factor, wouldn't it?

A Yes. (Tr. 99-102).

M. Antel's April 1981, noise survey report (exhibit P-6),
contain certain conclusions which recogni ze noi se sources ot her
than the wrench during the dunping operation, and these are as
fol | ows:

--- increased noise | evel s when car doors are
cl osed due to the reverberant condition of
the cars after the material has been renoved.

--- the car shaker.

--- loconotive tramm ng through the buil ding,
i ncluding the whistle.

M. Antel's report also states that at tines, two or three
cars may be enptying simultaneously, and that on occasion it may
be necessary to utilize a car shaker in enptying the car
Al t hough he did not consider the car shaker to be a major noise
source at the tine of his survey, he conceded that in the event
t he shaker operating time is increased it "should be regarded as
a potential problemand should be investigated". M. Antel notes
that the shaker operated two times during his survey, and no data
was collected fromthe | oconotive cab

In view of the foregoing, it would appear to ne that M.
Antel's noi se survey included factors which were not present
during the survey taken by M. MlLaughlin to support the
citations. It would seemto nme that if two or three cars are
bei ng dunped sinultaneously while one or nore car shakers is in
operation, significant noise sources other than the wenches
woul d be present. Yet, none of these variables are explained.
The parties go through great lengths to try and explain their
respecti ve engi neeri ng net hodol ogy in support of their respective
positions in this case, but it occurs to ne that when one is
dealing with such extrenmely conplex matters as the noi se
suppressi on standards in issue what may work theoretically on
paper may not work in the actual mne working environment.

In his report of the May 1982, noise evaluations, M. Ante
agai n recogni zes the fact that noises other than the wench
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contribute to the overall enployee exposures. He takes note of
the fact that there are differences in the noise | evels when the
wrench is coupled and uncoupled fromthe | oconotive car doors.

Al t hough he notes that when the wwench is coupled to the car
"anot her noi se source is activated", he speculated as to where

t hese sources were | ocated and concluded that the exact |ocation
could not be determned at the tine of his survey. He also took
note of the fact that the noise | evels generated while opening
the car doors are lower than the |evels generated while closing
the car doors. This fact |ends support to the respondent’'s claim
that the cars thenselves contribute significantly to the overal
noi se exposure.

Feasi bl e Engi neering Control s

Respondent concedes that it did not foll ow MSHA' s preci se
recomendat i ons concerning the noi se control mneasures descri bed
in the 1981 Antel Report. However, respondent has established
that its tests included the use of a foamlined netal shroud, a
rubber flap extending over the wench bit, and an exhaust
muf fler. Therefore, as correctly pointed out by the respondent,
its attenpted engi neering controls were close to those
recomended by MSHA and presented no significant operationa
di fferences, and M. Antel believed that one could expect
approxi mately the sane results fromthe noise controls measures
i npl enented by the respondent as those recommended by MSHA (Tr.
93). Further, as pointed out by the respondent at page 20 of its
post - hearing brief, during the abatenent process MSHA never took
issue with the respondent's testing (Tr. 213). As previously
noted, the conpliance time for both citations was extended for
some ten nonths while both the respondent and MSHA were
attenpting to come up with sone feasible engineering controls.
The citations were then term nated "pendi ng devel opnent of
addi ti onal means of noise attenuation on this equipnent which may
be required at a later date". In the nmeantine, MSHA permitted
t he use of personal hearing protection, and when the inspector
observed that the enployees were not wearing such devices the
citations followed.

Wth regard to the petitioner's assertion that respondent
failed to accept MSHA's offer to test one of the wenches inits
| aboratory, respondent explained that it could not afford to
relinquish a wench because it was required to be | ocated at the
| oading site as a back-up in the event the other wenches were
down for maintenance. 1In the circunstances, respondent's
reluctance to send one of its wenches to MSHA' s | aboratory for
testing seens reasonable. Aside fromthe fact that |aboratory
testing is significantly different than
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operating such a wench in the actual m ne environnment, | cannot
concl ude that on the circunstances here presented respondent’'s
reluctance to take one of its wenches out of conm ssion was

unr easonabl e.

Respondent' s mai nt enance supervisor Erickson confirnmed that
one of the wenches was "treated" with certain devices, including
a muffler, in order to test the noise reduction (Exhibit R 3).

He expl ained the nodifications in great detail (Tr. 107-11), and
aside fromthe fact that the particul ar nodifications had to be
"custom zed" to the particular wench, he encountered no
particular difficulties in making the nodifications (Tr. 112).
However, he did speculate on certain operational and mai ntenance
probl enmrs whi ch he believed woul d be encountered, and he estinated
that the total additional |abor and materials to naintain five
treated wenches woul d amount to $19,500 annually (Tr. 119). M.
Erickson alluded to certain conplaints nade by the wench
operator after it was nodified (Tr. 135-136; 138), and while he
confirmed that testing was conducted before and after the

nodi fications, he had no know edge of the test results or whether
the nodifications resulted in any noise inprovenents (Tr. 138).
M. Erickson's concern over the increased costs for the nodified
wrench stemmed fromthe fact that it would inpact on his
particul ar budget (Tr. 142).

M. Antel's testinmony that he had previously constructed a
wr ap-around rmuffler for use on |arge pneumatic drills, that the
cost woul d be approxi mately $65, and that no significant
mai nt enance or enpl oyee problens would result is not persuasive.
To begin with, the wench in question is not adrill. Wth
regard to M. Antel's assertion that he would expect a noise
reduction of 5 dBA in the unloading area if his "wap around"
reconmendati ons were followed, | take note of the fact that based
on the results of testing as advanced by the parties, respondent
woul d still not be in conpliance. More inportantly, on the facts
of this case, it seens clear to me that MSHA's preoccupation with
the wrench focuses only one part of the overall noise probl ens
which result fromthe total unloading operation to which the two
cited enpl oyees were exposed.

Saf ety supervisor Rowell indicated that the railroad owns
the cars, and while the respondent |eases sone of them it has no
control over which cars appear at the unloading facility (Tr.
183). He discounted the use of car bars to open the car doors
because the use of such bars has resulted in nunerous accidents
(Tr. 184-187). Petitioner's counsel agreed that the respondent
has no control over the cars and cannot readily nodify them (Tr.
230).
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M. Rowell believed that the fully-treated wench presented
serious safety problens due to the lack of visibility during the
i nsertion of the wench chuck into the car due to the presence of
the flap (Tr. 182). He also confirned that the respondent
consi dered purchasing a hydraulic torque-type wench, which is
qui eter, but decided not to after determning that it was
hazardous to the operator (Tr. 212). He also indicated that an
untreated wench wei ghs approxi mately 130 pounds, and that the
nodi fi cati ons added an additional 20 to 25 pounds (Tr. 168). He
also testified that the addition of the flap as shown on exhi bit
R-3 presented a visibility problemwhich has resulted in a
m spl aced wench bit flying off and that this is hazardous to the
wrench operator (Tr. 170-172).

Petitioner's suggestion at Tr. 231 that one cannot test the
noi se levels with the wench attached to the car so as to
determ ne the ampunt of noise given off by the car and the anount
of noise given off by the wench is sinply not so. The record
here establi shes when respondent tested the treated wench with
and wi thout a chuck while not coupled to the car, the sound | evel
meter indicated noise in the range of 88 to 92 dBA (exhibit R-8).
The test results for the treated wench while opening and cl osing
the car doors reflected significant increases in the noise
levels. As a matter of fact, M. Antel's May 1982, tests
i ndi cated the approxi mate sane results for the treated uncoupl ed
wrench as well as for the treated wench while coupled and used
in the opening and cl osing of the car doors. Thus, | conclude
that these test results support the respondent’'s assertions that
the wench in question is but one part of the noise problem

Petitioner's counsel candidly admtted during the course of
the hearing in this case that the parties "cane away fromthose
tests back in May of 1982 with a different interpretation of the
results” (Tr. 209). Wile it may be true that the testing
conducted by the parties reflect a reduction in the noise |evels
as between the treated and treated wenches, it seens clear to ne
that in the actual m ne working environment, conpliance will not
be achi eved until such tinme as the total noise sources are
addressed. Petitioner's counsel conceded that even if MSHA were
to i ndependently test the wench, and its recomendati ons did not
result in noise reduction, it would consider that there are no
feasi bl e engi neering controls avail able, and the respondent woul d
then be permitted to continue providing personal ear protection
to its enployees. This would be considered as conpliance (Tr.
228-229). During a bench colloquy, counsel elaborated further as
follows (Tr. 229-230):
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JUDGE KOQUTRAS: Once they operate under this standard and
made a reasonable effort to conply with the feasible
engi neering controls -- and that's always the guts of
t he cases; right?

MR VELSCH  Yes, sir.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: There is always a difference of opinion
as to what is feasible and what is not?

MR VELSCH  Yes, sir.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: But theoretically, assuming that they
did all that, that was necessary and that MSHA agreed
that they did all that was really necessary to bring
the noise level on this particular wench down into
conpliance, you could isolate that fromall the other
noi se and find that they were in conpliance.

And once they put that nodified wench back into
production, it could very well be that other noise
sources -- let's just take the enpty cars --

MR VELSCH  Yes, sir.

JUDGE KQUTRAS: That would put them back out of
conpli ance again? Theoretically, that could happen?

MR VELSCH  Yes, sir.

JUDGE KOQUTRAS: And then | suppose MSHA coul d cone back
and say, "Okay, listen. W have elimnated the wench
now. What we want you to do now is take these cars that
you are produci ng and buy sone rubber ones."

MR VWELSCH. I, | don't think MSHA would --
JUDGE KQUTRAS: Theoretically?

MR, WELSCH:. Theoretically, yes, Your Honor. In this
case, though, it is ny understanding that these are the
controls that MSHA recommends and at this point in tine
this is probably all the controls that we can recomend
to abate this noise.
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On the basis of the preponderance of the evidence adduced in this
case, | conclude that the petitioner has not established that
feasi bl e engi neering controls are available to reduce the noise
of the dunping operation in question to within the allowable
| evel s mandated by section 55.5-50(b). | conclude further that
the petitioner has failed to establish through any credible
evi dence that its recomended w ench engi neering noi se controls
wi Il reduce the dunping crew s noi se exposure so as to bring the
respondent into conpliance. | reject the petitioner's suggestion
that while the engineering controls tested by MSHA and the
respondent may not reduce enpl oyee exposure bel ow the perm ssible
l[imts, the respondent nust nonethel ess inplenment them

Wth respect to the question of econonic feasibility, based
on the record here presented, | cannot conclude that the
estimated costs for the treated wenches in question would place
the respondent in dire financial need. Based on its overal
resources, | cannot conclude that the expenditures testified to
in this case are economically burdensone. However, since there
is no dispute over the fact that the respondent was out of
conpliance and was in violation because the cited enpl oyees were
not wearing personal hearing protection, and in view of ny
conclusions that the petitioner has not prevailed on the question
of feasible engineering controls, the particul ar question of cost
feasibility is not a critical factor in this case.

I further find and concl ude that the respondent here acted
in good faith in attenpting to achi eve engi neering conpliance
through the testing of certain noise control neasures simlar to
t hose suggested by MSHA, but that unless the total operationa
noi se environnent at the dunping |ocation is addressed by both
MSHA and the respondent, "pieceneal"” consideration of the wench
in question will not achieve conpliance. | also find that the
respondent has established through credible testinony that its
own nodifications to the wench presented safety problens to the
operat or whi ch outwei ghed any resultant noi se reductions.

Feasi bl e adm ni strative control s

In this case, MSHA recomended the follow ng adm nistrative
control s:

1. Having the lead flagman and fl agnan | eave the
dunpi ng shed when a trip of cars is being noved
t hr ough.
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2. Eimnating any unnecessary use of the | oconotive
whi stle while the | oconptive is passing through the
shed.

3. Keeping the lead flagnan and fl agman outside the
| oconoti ve cab unl ess uncessary in the performance of
their duties.

Al t hough respondent on the one hand states that MSHA' s
adm nistrative controls are not significant, it nonethel ess at
page 37 of its post-hearing brief "does not disagree with the

wi sdom of those recomendati ons”. At page 31 of its post-hearing
brief, respondent concedes further that MSHA' s suggested
adm nistrative controls will, to sone small degree, be effective

i n reduci ng the dunping crew s noi se exposure, and that if MSHA' s
recomendations are followed the crew will occasionally be
exposed to significant noise |evels.

In addition to those adm nistrative controls suggested by
MSHA, the respondent states that one of the nore comon
adm ni strative noise controls, rotation of enpl oyees anong
various work stations of varying noi se exposures to mnimnze the
total daily noise dose, was never recomended by NMSHA
Respondent assunes that MSHA accurately perceived that respondent
could not inplenment such neasures at the Port Sutton term na
because the facility's enployees are solidly unionized and
dunpi ng crew jobs are subject to the "bid" system Respondent
states that any assignnent of a | ess-senior enployee to a
preferred position on the unloading crew would result in union
gri evance proceedi ngs or doubl e paynent of enployees (i.e.
paynment of both the senior enployee who was "bunped" by rotating
of f the dunmping crew as well as the junior enployee who actually
performed the work) (Tr. 166-167).

Respondent' s safety supervisor Rowel| testified that since
the citations were issued all enployees working in the unl oading
area are required to wear personal ear protection as a condition
of continued enploynment (Tr. 190). He also confirnmed that on any
gi ven day, enployees in the unloading area would spend from4 to
6 hours per shift in that |ocation, and that during this tine the
wrenches are in operation only when the car doors are opened (Tr.
164). He confirmed further that the respondent supplies al
enpl oyees with ear plugs, that any enpl oyee working in the car
unl oading area is required to wear themas a matter of conpany
policy, and that the annual training for all enployees includes a
portion devoted to noise (Tr. 168, 187). Although M. Rowell
alluded to the possibility of bringing in additional part-tine
shifts to relieve the regular unloading crews, he did not believe
this would be feasible due to the added costs (Tr. 183).

However, no further details or evidence was offered with respect
to this suggestion
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At hearing, respondent’'s counsel conceded that section 55.5-50(b)

requires the respondent to inplenent feasible engineering or

adm ni strative controls to achieve conpliance (Tr. 222). \Wen
asked whet her he believed MSHA' s recommended administrative
controls to be unduly burdensone, counsel replied as follows (Tr.
224):

JUDGE KOUTRAS: At any rate, | don't see anything in

t hese three paragraphs that would, that would be an
undue burden on the, on the Respondent in this case to
conply with; wouldn't that be true? Do you agree or

di sagree with that? Counsel or?

MR, deMEZA: It would seem so, Your Honor, although I
have not discussed it with the client.

| cannot conclude fromthe record in this case that the
respondent has established that the recommended admi nistrative
controls are not feasible. By the same token, | cannot conclude
that the parties have established that such controls will, or
have had any significant inpact in reducing the noise exposure.
Quite frankly, | believe that the parties have concentrated on
engi neering controls, and have not fully considered the inpact of
any possible admnistrative solutions to the problem Under the
circunstances, | believe that the respondent has a continui ng
obligation to continue to explore feasible adm nistrative
controls, including those suggested during the hearing, in order
to achieve full conpliance with the noise requirenents.

The parties are rem nded that while the result of ny
decision in this case is to permt the respondent to use persona
ear protection, as correctly stated by the petitioner, the use of
such devices is not an absolute defense. M decision in this
case focused on the pneumatic wench, and ny feasibility findings
are in connection with that particul ar piece of equipnent.
Respondent may not sit idly by w thout nmaking any further
attenpts to address its noise problens at the dunping location in
guestion, and it has a positive duty to nmake good faith future
efforts at achieving total noise conpliance at the operation in
guesti on.

Fact of Violations

There is not dispute on the question of violation and the
record supports a conclusion that the respondent is in violation
of mandatory safety standard 30 CFR 55.5-50(b). Accordingly, the
citations ARE AFFI RVED.
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H story of Prior Violations

The conputer print-out submitted by the petitioner (Ex.
P-1), reveals a noderate history of prior violations by the
respondent with no previous violations of the cited standard
herein, and | have considered this in the course of ny penalty
assessnents in this case.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Cvil Penalties on the
Respondent's Ability to Remain in Business.

I conclude that the respondent is a |large mne operator, and
the parties agree that the paynent of the proposed civil
penalties will not adversely affect its ability to remain in
busi ness.

Negl i gence

Al t hough respondent suggests that it was unaware of any
noi se problens at its unl oading operation, and relied on its
enpl oyees to bring such problens to its attention, since it did
conduct noi se tests on certain other equipnment, | believe it had
an obligation to insure that tests were nade at the unl oadi ng
area as well, particularly when its own safety supervisor
(Rowel 1) candidly admtted that the unl oading area was the only
real source of any potential excessive noise. In these
circunstances, | conclude and find that the violations resulted
fromthe respondent's failure to exercise reasonable care, and
that this anpbunts to ordi nary negligence.

Gavity

Al t hough there is no evidence of any specific damage to any
enpl oyee as a result of excessive noise exposure, the fact is
that in this case the enpl oyees were not wearing persona
protective devices. Since the respondent concedes that it was
out of conpliance and that the two cited enpl oyees were not
wearing such protective devices, they were exposed to noi se above
the regulatory limts. Accordingly, | conclude that the
conditions cited posed a potential source of harmto the
enpl oyees, and that the violations were serious.

Good Faith Conpliance

I conclude that the respondent made a good faith effort to
achi eve conmpliance after the cited conditions were brought to its
attention, and | have considered this in the penalties assessed
by me for the two violations in question
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Penal ty Assessnents

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons, and
taking into account the requirenments of Section 110(i) of the
Act, | conclude and find that the following civil penalty
assessnents are appropriate for the citations which have been
affirnmed:

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR Section Assessnent
094927 11/ 26/ 80 55. 5-50( b) $180
094928 11/ 26/ 80 55. 5-50(b) 180
$360
ORDER

Respondent 1S ORDERED to pay the civil penalties assessed by
me in the amounts shown above within thirty (30) days of this
deci si on and order, and upon receipt of paynent by the
petitioner, this case is dism ssed.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge



